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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

™ Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Sunfresh Agro Industries Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of
= Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement

of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

5 | The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
—_— with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

as amended, and the accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
= and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
— financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made

thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and
its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes

in equity for the year ended on that date.
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Other Matter

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 were audited by
another auditor whose report dated May 23, 2017 expressed a modified audit opinion with respect to
recognition of Government Grants which it was entitled to receive Package Scheme of Incentive 2007

(‘the Scheme’) pertaining to prior years amounting to Rs. 1,891.47 Lakhs.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(f)

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are

in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in

‘Annexure A’
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(8) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
—— information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 38 to the Ind AS financial statements.

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of sub-section 11 of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure B’, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

. For MSKA & Associates (Formerly known as MZSK & Associates)

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Amrish Anup Vaidya
Partner
= Membership No. 101739

Place : Navi Mumbai
—_— Date : May 18, 2018
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF SUNFRESH AGRO INDUSTRIES PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,
™ 2018

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
- Independent Auditors’ Report]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
_— Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sunfresh Agro Industries
- Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

- Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
i the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) (the

“Guidance Note”j. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
r— adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the

s | accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
i Act.
3 Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
= reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
= Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
- the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
35 assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
— and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
™ financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
P risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks

of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

— We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
— statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
= the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
= (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

= Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
i possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
= financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
p— financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were

operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting

_— criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note.

—_ For MSKA & Associates (Formerly known as MZSK & Associates)
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

- Amrish Anup Vaidya
Partner
Membership No. 101739

Place : Navi Mumbai
Date : May 18, 2018
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL
& STATEMENTS OF SUNFRESH AGRO INDUSTRIES PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,
2018

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the
| Independent Auditors’ Report]

i
(@) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) All the fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there
— is a regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such

— verification.

— (€) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
| Company.

ii. The inventory (excluding Goods in transit and stock lying with third parties) has been physically
verified by the management during the year. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these
have substantially been confirmed by them. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and
the book records.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited

— Liability Partnerships (LLP) or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to (c)

™ of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

i iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom
the director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act and the
Company has not made investments through more than two layers of investment companies in
accordance with the provisions of section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

_— V. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act
—_ and the rules framed there under.
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vi.

vii.

(a)

(b)

viii,

ix.

Xi.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account relating to materials, labour and other items of
cost maintained by the Company pursuant as specified by the Central Government for the
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and we are of the
opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We
have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any
other statutory dues applicable to it.

According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of the
Company, the outstanding dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty,
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of dues | Amount Period to which | Forum where dispute |
statute Rs. the amount | is pending

relates
Income  tax | Income tax 9,81,890 | A.Y 2011-12* Assistant Commissioner
act 1961 of Income tax,

Ahmednagar

Income tax | Income tax 8,28,030 | A.Y 2012-13* Income tax office,
act 1961 Ahmednagar |

*A.Y stands for Assessment Year

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to its banks. The Company did not have any loan or borrowings
from financial institution, government or any debentures outstanding during the year,

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees.

According to the information and explanations given to us, since the Company is a Private
Company, the provisions of section 197 of the Act will not be applicable. Accordingly, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XVi.

XV,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has made private placement of preference shares during the
year and the requirements of Section 42 of the Act have been complied with. The amount raised
has been used for the purposes for which they were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

For MSKA & Associates (Formerly known as MZSK & Associates)
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Amrish Anup Vaidya
Partner
Membership No.101739

Place : Navi Mumbai
Date : May 18, 2018



Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Balance Sheet
a3 ot 31 March 2018

(Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless atherwise stated)

As at Asat
Notes 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
ASSETS
Nen-current assets
Praperty, plant and equipment 15 28,783.11 28,539.85
Capital work-in-progress 16 960,79 213737
Financial assets
(i} Investments 17 032 03z
11} Other financial asseats 18 1,844.50 522,85
Income taxk assets (net) 9.80 9.81
Other non-current assets 19 180.22 206,20
Total non-current assets (A) 31,779.14 3141640
Current Assets
Inventaries prle] §,523.31 8,714.93
Financial assets
(I} Trade receivables i 12,951.29 16,159.30
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 22 3,118.89 3,252.55
(ili) Bank balances ather than cash and cash eguivalents i3 44.30 58.19
(iv) Lozas 2 3.62 5,34
(v} Other financial assots 5 1,288.43 1,668,39
Other current assets 26 3,367.42 BAT3.37
Total current assets (8) 29,297.26 38,372.67
TOTAL ASSETS [A+8) GJ.EW'E.“U 555759.0?'
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Eaquity share capital 7 5.300.72 5.300,72
Other equity a8 32,130.72 28477.31
Equity attributable to owner of the Company 37,431.49 33,778.03
Total equity ic) 37,431.44 33,778.03
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(il Borrawings 3o 10,935.70 21.58
Provisions 5 § 11.36 35.29
Deferrea tax labilities {net} 14 1,415.24 132270
Total non-current liabllities o} 12,376.30 1.379.97
Current liabilities
Financial iabilities
{I) Barrowings 32 8,000,00 158,190.78
(i) Trade payables 33 1,506.98 1,705.78
{1ii} Other financial liabilitles 34 530.72 1238399
Other current lizbilities 35 53347 41021
Frovisions 36 15.93 381
Current tax liabilities (net) 37 281.86 33630
Total Current liabilities IE} 11,268.66 34,631.07
Total liabllities (O+E} 23,644.95 36,011.04
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES [C+D+E) 61,076.40 69,785.07
Significant accounting policles -3
Notes to the financial statements 4:52

Thi notes referred 10 abave farm an Integral part of the financial statements
As per our repart of even date attached

For M5KA & Associates (Formerly known as
MZSK & Associates) For and on behalf of Board of directors of
Chartered Accountants J Sunfresh Agre industries Private Limited .
ICAI Firm Registration No.105047W i oy (01129PN 29505 |

I l;l W—7
o - \ ///
Amrish Anup Vai Nl Sarangdhar R Nirmal Vivek S Nirmal

Partner Director Manoging Director
Membership No, 101739 DiN: 00820923

Place: Navi Mumbal
Date: 18 May 2018

=
Tasneem H Bhanpurawala
Compoany Secretary

Membership No, A43936

Place: Navi Mumbai
Date! 18 May 2018




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2018

(Amount- INR In Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Notes 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Revenue from operations 4 94,527.23 89,338.28
Gther income ] 150,87 90.55
Total income 94,678.10 89,428.83
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed [ 77,323.09 7746813
Purchase of traded goods 7 488.66 71592
Changes in inventaries of finished Eoods and work-in-progress 8 56.21 (2,246.22)
Employee benefits expense 9 981.06 870.23
Finance costs 10 2,397.50 2,927.80
Depreciation expense 11 3,003.99 2,715.38
Other expensas 12 7,151.44 4,271.83
Total Expenses 91,401.95 86,723.07
Profit before exceptional items and tax 3,276.15 2,705,786
Exceptional items 46 - 1,891.47
Profit before tax 3,276.15 4,597,238
Tax expense:
Current Tax 672.35 1,121.189
Ceferred Tax (including MAT credit of Rs 649.13 lakhs {31 March 2017
Rs 714.04 (akhs) (300.12) B46.05
Total tax expense 14 37223 1,967.28
Profit for the year 2,903.92 2,629.95
Other comprehensive income 13
Items that will nat be reclassified subseguent to profit ar loss
Remeasurements of employee benefit obllgations 7.25 2110
Income tax related ta items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss {2.51) (7.30)
Other Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 4.74 13.80
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,908.66 2,643.75
Earnings per equity share
Basic earning per equity share of face value of Rs. 10 each (31 March 29 5.49 5.02
2017: Rs. 10}
Diluted earning per equity share of face value of Rs. 10 wach {31 March 29 5.49 5.02
2017: Rs. 10}
significant accounting policies &3
Notes to the financiai statements 4-52
The nates referred ta sbove farm an integral part of the financlal statements
As per our report of even date attached
For MSKA & Assoclates (Formerly known as MZSK & Associates) For and on behalf of Board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited z\
ICAJ Firm Registration No,105047W CIN. No : uauzzm\r 7PTC129505 |'\\ .
@U o =/ -W ) I = 1
Amrish Anup Valdvi( | fRNimal N[rmil Vivek § Nirmal

Partnar \___,.f' Director Managing Director
Membership No. 101739 DIN: 00820923
Place: Navi Mumbal
Date: 18 May 2018

=
Tasneem H Bhanpurawala
Chief Financia! Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. Ad3936

Place: Navi Mumibai
Date: 18 May 2018




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity (SOCIE)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

{Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

(a) Equity share capital (refer note 27)

As at As at
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Equity shares of As 10 each Issued, subscribed and fully paid

Opaning. 5,30,07,184 5,300.72 5,19,02,895 5,180.25
Add: lssue during the year - - 11,04,289 110.43

Clasing 5,30,07,184 5,300.72 5,30,07,184 5,300,72
(b) Other equity

Reserves & Surplus Items of OCI
Securities Remeasurements Total Equity
Particulars Capital Reserve | Premium Account | Retained earnings|  Other Equity of the net defined
[Note a] benefit Plans

Balance at 01 April 2016 4,189.87 14,708.02 5,816.58 [7.32) 24,707.15
Profit far the year - 2,629,895 . 2,629.95
Other comprehensive income for the year [net of tax) - 13.80 13.80
Total comprehensive income for the year - 2,629.95 - 13.80 2,643.75
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

Contribution by owners .
Issue of share capital [nate a) 1,126.41 1,126.41
Total transactions with owners - 1,176.41 | - 112641
Balance at 31 March 2017 4,189.87 15,834.43 B,446.53 = 5,48 18,477.31
Profit for the year 280352 = . 2,503,92
Other camprehensive income for the year (net of ta x) - - 4.74 4.74
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2,903.92 - 4.74 2,908.66
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Contribution by owners
Equity it an Falr value ad of Preference share - - - 1.138.80 - 1,138.90
{refer note 43)
Deferred tax on Equity companent (refer note 44) - [394,15) {394 15}
Tatal transactions with owners | - - = 744.75 . 744.75
Balance at 31 March 2018 | 4,189.87 15,834.43 11,350.45 744.75 11.22 32,130.72

Note:

3| During the year, the Company has allated Nil {31 March 2017 : 1,104,289

‘the ultimate holding Company'.

Significant accounting palicies
Notes to the financial statements

-3
4-52

The notes referred to above form an Integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For M5SKA B Associates (Formerly known as MZSK & Assoclates)

) equity shares of Rs 10 each at a premium of Rs;

For and on behalf of Board of directors af

NIl {31 March 2017 - Rs 102} per share to Prabhat Dairy Limited,

Chortered Accountants Sunfresh Agro industries Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.105047W CIN. No : U01122PN2007PTC129505
@ ( I )y 1/ L ' 4 By A=
Amrish Anup Vaidya Vivl s ;@V/
Partner Monaging Director

Mambership No. 101739
Place! Navi Mumbai
Date: 18 May 2018

DIN: 00820923

|

Tasneem H shaﬁpurawala
Company Secretary
Membership No. A43536

Place: Navi Mumbai
Date: 18 May 2018




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flow
for the yeor endad 31 March 2018

{Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 3,276.15 4,597.23
Adfustments for
Depreciation expense 3,003.95 271538
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.67 1247
Prawision for doubtful trade and ather recalvables (net} 30.74 -
Unrealised Exchange loss 15.36 -
Interest income {17.25) [11.22)
Unwinding of Intersst on Preference capital 513.88 .
Finarce costs 1,883.62 2,827.80
8,707.16 10,241.66
Working copito! odjustments
(Intrease} / Decrease in Inventories 191.62 {2,775.86)
[Increase)/ Decrease In trade and other receivables 3,217.88 {76.10)
Decrease in current Loans 1n 3
(Increase)/ decrease in current financial assats 370.74 (1,409.23)
Decrease in other non current asset 80.77 .
(Increase)/ decreass in Gther Current Asser 5,105.95 {8,364,73)
(Increase} in non qurrent - financial asset (1.303.84) [296.39)
Inctease/ (Decrease] in ather current financial liabllities 155.36) 14,91
Oetrease |n other current lisbilties 122.7% 18274
Increase/ (Decrease] in trade and ather payabies 185.39 [4,905.68)
Incraase/(Decraase) in current provisions and employee banafits 12.12 (5.42)
Increase/|Dacrease) in non cutrent provisians and employee benafits {6.68) 23.20
16,630.23 (7.372.50)
Income Tax paid {1,326.77) [318.95}

Net cash flows from operating activities 15,303.46 (7,691.85)

Cash flow from investing activities

Fayment for purchase and canstruction of Rroperty, plant and squipment {2.373.35) 12,745.63)
Preceeds from sale of propenty, plant and eqlipment 5.08 641,72
Interest received 26.47 7.32
\invastment) in bank aepasits far mare than 3 manths {4.33) 194.57)
Net cash flows from investing activities (2,346.13) (2,191.56)

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital

- 1,236.84
Proceeds from / (repayment of) Loan and barrowings (nat) (11,207.37) 12,738.91
Repayment of Loan and borrowings from related party {11,553.98) -
Praceeds from redeemable preference shares 11,553.98 .
Finance cha rges paid (1,883.62) [1.476.33)
Net cash flows from financing activities 113,090.99) 12,859.42
Net increase / (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (133.66) 2616.01
ash and cash equivaients at the be inning of the year 3,252.55% 636,54
Cash and cash equivalants at the end of the year 3.118.89 3,252.55
Reconclliation of Cash and Cash equivalents with the Balance Shest
Cash and cash equivalants comprise (Ref note 22 )
Balance with banks |
In eurrent account 3,100.31 324784
In €C account 13.56 .
Cash on hand 5.02 471
Cash and Cash equlvalents as at the year end 3,118.89 3,252.55

The above Cash Flow Statement has been pregared under the fdirect Methad' as set out in the Accounting Standard (IND AS) T - "Cash Flow
Statermnents”

Cash comprises cash on hand, Current Accounts id deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term baiances {with an
ariginal maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition|, highky liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value,

Signlificant accounting policies 243
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The nates referred ta above form an Integral part of the financial statements
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For MSKA & Assaciates (Formerly known as

MZSK & Associates) Forand on behaif of Board of directars of
Chertered Accountants Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited I \
ICAI Firm Registration Ne.105047W | No: 01@/ 9505 \ L
. W / SN M
a.c i I.II / S .

o \ — ==
R Anup Vaidya \_/ W Vivek § Nirmal

Partner Cwrector Managing D_Irermr
Membership No. 101739 DiN: 00820923

Place: Navi Mumbai
Date: 18 May 2018

Tasneem H Bhanpurawaia
Company Secretary
Membership No. A43936

Place: Navi Mumbaj
Date: 18 May 2018




-

Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

(Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

1. Reporting Entity

2.1

2.2

2.3

Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited (“Sunfresh” or “the Company”) is a Private Limited Company
domiciled and headquartered in India and was incorporated on 22 January 2007. Prabhat Dairy
Limited holds 100% equity share capital of Sunfresh directly and through its subsidiary Cheese Land
Agro (India) Private Limited. Prabhat Dairy Limited is the Company’s ultimate holding Company and is

listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and Bombay Stock Exchange of India Limited
on 21 September 2015.

The Company is engaged in the business of processing of milk, manufacturing and sale of various milk
and products including skimmed milk powder, whole milk powder, cheese, paneer and sweetened
condensed milk, catering to the needs of the industrial trade sector.

Basis of Preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 18 May
2018.

Details of the Company’s significant accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's

functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakh to two decimal points,
unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair Value of plan assets less present value of

defined benefit obligations




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)
(Currency — INR in Lakhs, except share data)

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in

a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2018 is included in the following notes:

- Note 14 - recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax
losses carried forward can be used:;

- Note 15 - Property, plant and eguipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of
the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an
estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life.
The useful lives and residual values of company's assets are determined by management at the
time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The
lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events,
which may impact their life.

- Notes 38 — the Company has received some orders and notices from tax authorities in respect of
direct and indirect taxes. The outcome of these matters may have a material effect on the
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Management regularly analyzes current
information about these matters and makes provisions for probable losses. In making the
decision regarding the need for loss provisions, management considers the degree of probability
of an unfavorable outcome and the ability to make a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount
of loss. The filing of a suit or formal assertion of a claim against the Company or the disclosure of
any such suit or assertions, does not automatically indicate that a provision of a loss may be
appropriate; and;

- Note 43 — measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

2.5 Measurement of fair values

A number of Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
The finance team has the overall responsibility for all significant fair value measurements, including
Level 3 fair values, supported by external experts, whenever required. Fair value measurement are
reviewed by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO).




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)
(Currency - INR in Lakhs, except share data)

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

2.5 Measurement of fair values (continued)

2.6

s

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Llevel 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the

same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 44 —
financial instruments.

Current-non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle;

b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded:
¢) itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 3 liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as
non-current.




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)
(Currency — INR in Lakhs, except share data)

2,

2.6

3.1

a)

b)

c)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Current-non-current classification (continued)

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c) itis expected to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash or cash equivalents. The operating cycle of the Company is less than 12 months.

Significant accounting policies

Revenue recognition

Product sales and Sale of service

Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the
consideration receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates. This inter alia involves
discounting of the consideration due to the present value if payment extends beyond normal credit
terms. Revenue is recognised when significant risks and rewards of their ownership are transferred to
the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of
goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control over, or managerial
involvement with, the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

In view of the nature of services rendered, revenue from services is recognised in profit or loss in
proportion of the transaction at the reporting date.
Export incentives

Export incentives are recognized when the right to receive credit as per the terms of incentives is
established in respect of the exports made and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the
ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Package scheme of incentive

Package scheme of incentive is recognized when right to receive credit as per the terms of incentive is
established and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding ultimate collection of such subsidy.
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Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)
(Currency — INR in Lakhs, except share data)

3.

3.1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

d) Interest income

e)

3.2

3.3

Interest income is recognised on a time proportionate basis taking into account the amount invested
and the rate applicable.

Other

Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive payment is established.

Government grants

The Company is entitled to various Incentives from government authorities in respect of
manufacturing units located in developing regions. The Company accounts for its entitlement on
accrual basis on approval of the initial claim by the relevant authorities,

Subsidy received under the Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) signed with the Government of
Maharashtra (“GOM") in respect of manufacturing units located in developing regions, is recognized
when there is reasonable assurance regarding compliance with the specified conditions and
consequent receipt of the grant.

Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognised in statement of profit or
loss as other operating revenue on a systematic basis in the periods in which such expenses are
recognised.

Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and loans given are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial

assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortized cost;

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) - equity investment; or

- Fairvalue through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)
(Currency - INR in Lakhs, except share data)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

33

Financial instruments (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCl (designated as
FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment- by- investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
Interest

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual

cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company
considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non - recourse
features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination of the contract.




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)
(Currency — INR in Lakhs, except share data)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.3 Financial instruments (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par
amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents

the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include
reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated

As consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement gains and losses

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and

FVTPL losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

amortised cost effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment

losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
FVOCI recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net

gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign

exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or
in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset,




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)
(Currency — INR in Lakhs, except share data)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.3 Financial instruments (continued)

3.4

Derecognition (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet,

but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the
transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in
profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts

and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, inciuding import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or
loss.




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)
(Currency - INR in Lakhs, except share data)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying value of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when

replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Advance paid towards the acquisition of property , plant and equipment outstanding at each balance
sheet date is classified as ‘Capital Advance’ under other non-current assets and cost of asset not
ready to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital Work-in-progress’.

Depreciation

Schedule Il allows companies to use higher/ lower useful lives and residual values if such useful lives

and residual values can be technically supported and appropriate disclosure is made in the financial
statements.

The management believes that depreciation rates used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives

and residual values of fixed assets, though these rates in certain cases are different from lives
prescribed under Schedule I1.

Accordingly, depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided on straight line method at estimated
useful lives, which in certain categories of assets is different than the estimated useful life as specified
in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Schedule II') and are as under:

" Category of asset ' Useful life followed Useful life as per Schedule I ‘

| (in years) (in years) |
Factory Building 15-40 30 |
Electrical installations 10 10
Plant and equipment  (except 10 5¥
Cheese and Paneer)
Office equipment 3 5
Furniture & Fixtures 16 10
Vehicle 10.56 10
Computers 3 3
Cheese plant and equipment 20 15*
Paneer plant and equipment 22 15%
Co-generation plant 40 40

*For General laboratory equipment, the useful life as per Schedule || is 10 years.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Acquired assets consisting of leasehold land are recorded at
acquisition cost and amortized on straight-line basis based over the lease term.

Additions to tangible fixed assets individually costing Rs. 5,000 or less are depreciated fully in the year
of acquisition.

@
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)
(Currency - INR in Lakhs, except share data)

3. Significant accou nting policies (continued)
3.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation (continued)

Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the
—_ date of acquisition. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property, plant and equipment is provided
up to the date preceding the date of sale or deduction as the case may be. Gains and losses on
disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in

‘Statement of Profit and Loss’ under ‘other income’ in case of gains and under ‘other expenses’ in
case of losses,

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each financial year
end and adjusted Prospectively, as appropriate.

3.5 Impairment
Impairment of financial instruments

- The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
- credit-impaired. A financial asset is 'credit- impaired' when one or more events that have 3
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer:
= - abreach of contract such as a default or being past due for 180 days or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
ris consider otherwise;

- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— - the disappearance of an active market fora security because of financial difficulties.
-— Loss allowances for trade receivables are measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.5 Impairment (continued)
Impairment of financial instruments (continued)

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset increases significantly if it is more than
180 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by
the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is 180 days or more past due.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to

the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for finaricial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets,

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written

off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures
for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together
into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU:s.

In accordance with IndAS 36 — Impairment of Assets, the Company assesses, at each Balance Sheet
date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indications exist, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of asset or
recoverable amount of cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than the carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an
impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.5 Impairment (continued)

3.6

3.7

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

If at the Balance Sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no
longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable

of purchases, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. In determining cost “First in First out” method is used. In the case of
manufactured inventories and work in progress, fixed production overheads are allocated on the
basis of normal capacity of production facilities.

Obsolete, defective and unserviceable inventories including slow moving stocks are provided based
n technical evaluation. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
the business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

finished products will exceed their net realizable value,

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short term employee benefits and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the
related service. These benefits include salaries and wages and bonus. The undiscounted amount of
short-term employee services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by the
employees,

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contrib
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.7 Employee benefits (continued)

3.8

3.9

Defined benefit plans

The employee’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of
defined benefit plan is calculated by discounting the estimated amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in the current and prior periods. The liability for gratuity is partly funded,
wherein contributions are made and charged to revenue on annual basis.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined
benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability
(asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as
a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates at

the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at
the date of the transaction.

exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.,
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3. Significant accou nting policies (continued)

3.9

Income tax (continued)

Current tax (contin ued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set

off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

- temporary differences, related to investments in subsidiaries (in relation to undistributed profits),
to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against
which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets - unrecognized or recognized, are

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner

in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as
current tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The credit available under the Act, in respect of MAT
paid is recognised as asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried
forward for set- off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at

exists.




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)
(Currency — INR in Lakhs, except share data)

3. Significant accou nting policies (continued)

3.10 Provisions and contingencies

3.11

3.12

3.13

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigations assessment, fines, penalties

etc. are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount can be
estimated reliably.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non -occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Leases

Assets held under leases

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership over
the lease term are classified as operating lease. Payments made under operating leases are generally
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
such payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for
the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of

that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Segment reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of processing of milk and manufacturing of dairy
products. Therefore, the Company is of the view that revenue from processing of milk and
manufacturing of dairy products is a single component of the Company for assessing its performance.
Hence, processing of milk and manufacturing of dairy products is the only reportable segment. The

Company’s operations are primarily in India, accordingly there is no reportable secondary
geographical segment.




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)
(Currency — INR in Lakhs, except share data)

3. Significant accounti ng policies (continued)

3.14 Earnings per share

3.15

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year,

The diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity and equivalent potential dilutive
equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an
original maturity of three months or less.




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

(Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

4. Revenue from operations

Sales of products and services
Sale of products (including excise duty)
Sale of traded goods

Other operating revenue
Export incentives

Package scheme of incentives subsidy (refer note 46)
Sale of scrap

For the year ended  For the year ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
92,825.70 87,080.18

568.32 749.01
93,394.02 87,829.19
- 40.88
1,115.50 1,450.26
17.71 17.95
1,133.21 1,509.09
94,527.23 89,338.28

Sale of goods includes excise duty collected from customers of Rs.20.42 lakhs (31 March 2017: Rs.30.65 lakhs). Sale of
goods net of excise duty is Rs.93,373.60 lakhs (31 March 2017: Rs. 87,798.54 lakhs). Revenue from operations for

periods up to 30 June 2017 inciudes excise duty. From 1 Jul
India have been replaced Goods and Service Tax (GST). The
Hence, GST is not included in Revenue from operations. In view
from operations year ended 31 March 2018 is not comparable 3

5. Other Income

Interest income
from banks
from others
Gain on foreign currency transactions (net)
Liabilities written back to the extent of no longer required
Miscellaneous income

6. Cost of materials consumed (refer note 47)
Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases
Inventory of materials at the end of the year

7. Purchase of stock-in-trade

y 2017 onwards the excise duty and most indirect taxes in
Company collects GST on behalf of the Government,

of the aforesaid change in indirect taxes, Revenue

1 March 2017.

6.75 7.97
10.50 3.25

s 14.53

- 0.27
133.62 64.53
150.87 90.55
1,067.78 538.14
77,187.68 77,997.77
932.37 1,067.78
77,323.09 77,468.13
488.66 715.92




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

(Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

8. Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

Inventories at the beginning of the year ;
Finished goods
Work-in-process

(A)
Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods
Work-in-process

(B)
Changes In Inventories:
Finished goods
Work-in-process
Increase In Inventories: (C)=(A)+(B)
8. Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages bonus and allowances

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 43)
Gratuity expense (refer note 43)

Staff welfare expenses

10. Finance costs
Interest expense
on borrowings
on loan from holding company (refer note 48)
unwinding of interest on Preference capital (refer note 49)
Other borrowing costs (refer note 47)
Interest on delayed payment of tax

11. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation (Refer Note 15)

@/

For the year ended

For the year ended

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
6,953.56 4,932.09
693.59 468.84
7,647.15 5,400.93
6,110.16 6,953.56
1,480.78 693.59
7,590.94 7,647.15
843.40 {2,021.47)
(787.19) (224.75)
56.21 (2,246.22)
899.72 816.13
27.58 26.92
27.13 15.78
26.63 11.40
981.06 870.23
1,537.78 1,333.98
199.51 1,451.47
513.88 -
116.33 87.35
30.00 55.00
2,397.50 2,927.80
3,003.99 2,715.38
3,003.99 2,715.38




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

(Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

12. Other expenses

Co-packing and conversion charges

Consumption of stores and spare parts

Repairs and maintenance

- Machinery

- Others

Rent including lease rentals (refer note 39)

Rates and taxes (refer note 47)

Insurance

Power and fuel

Labour charges

increase of excise duty on inventory
Advertisement and sales promotion expenses
Transport and forwarding expenses

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional expenses

Payment to auditors (refere note 41)

Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) (refer note 42)
Gain on foreign currency transactions (net)
Capital advances and security deposits written off
Provision for doubtful trade and other receivables (net)
Miscellaneous expenses

13. Statement of other comprehensive income

(i} Items that will not be reciassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans

(ii} Income tax relating to items that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss

For the year ended

For the year ended

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
205.66 287.64
960.81 542.31
411.36 160.00
177.49 80.81
188.52 50.69
261.33 102.07
29.69 34.81
3,089.25 1,885.95
678.48 467.14
- 7.75
1.43 5.25
649.19 257.99
98.46 32.62
141.88 152.67
5.69 9.61
0.67 12.47
88.48 51.88
43,74 -

- 64.86
30.74 -
88.57 65.11

7,151.44 4,271.83
7.25 21.10
7.25 21.10

(2.51) (7.30)
4.74 13.80




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
as ot 31 March 2018 fcontinued)

{Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

14. Tax expense
1414 d in Stat t of Profit and Loss For the year Far the year
ended ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
(3) Income Tax expense
Current tax
Current tax on the profit for the year 649.13 1,061.19
Adjustment of current tax of Prior periods 23.22 60.00
Total current tax expense 672.35 1,121.19
(b) Deferred tax
Attributabie 1o -
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 345.01 1,560.13
MAT credit entitlernent (648.13) (1,061.15)

Excess MAT credit relating to prior years written off (refer riote 38{c)) - 347.15
Deferred tan expense 300.12] 846,09

Tax expense for the year 37223 1,867.28
14.2 A In other ¢ ive income

For the year ended March 31, 2018 Forthe year ended March 31, 2017

Before tax Tax {expense) Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense) Net of tax
benefit benefit
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasuremants of the defined benafit plans 1,25 2,51 4.74 21.10 7.30 13,80
7.25 {2.51) 4.74 21.10 (7.30) 13,80
14.3 Reconciliation of effective tax rate For the year ended For the vear ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Profit before tax 3,276.15 4.597.23
Tax using the Company's tax rate af 34.61% (31 March 2017 : 34,61%) 34.61% 1,133.81 34.61% 159101
Tax effect of:
Effect of non ded uctible expenses 2.12% 69.32 0.92% 4225
Effect of tax exempt Income ~14.84% (486.24) -2.61% (120.21)
Effect of additional allowances for tax purpose -10.57% (346.35) -4.59% (210.87)
Effact of praposed application to ITSC (refer note 38 (4] 0.00% . 14.49% 666,12
Effect of previous year aojustments 0.71% 3.2 0.00%

Others -0.66% 111.53! 0.62% 11.92}
11.36% 372.23 42.79% 1,367.28

14.4 Recognised deferred tax asset and liability

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable ta the following:

Deferred tax asset Deferred tax liabilities Deferred tax asse labilities,

As at Asat Agat As at
- [4,046.32) ¥
1216.31)

Property, plant and equlpment

Loans and berrowings

Employee benafits

Provisions

MAT credit entitlement (net)
eferred tax asset/ {liabilities)




TT'E8L'82 29y 68'6 S8'18 ££°L0T £EV°96ETZ ESZITL - 0001 BT0Z YW £ 38 sy
SB'6E5'8T 0z'1 S6'S 95°LL 1405 89°LIvTe 5479587 = 00'0L LTI0Z YEW TE IE sy,
(18u] spunowe duluey
6Z'8ZT'8 (153 SZ°0T 6ETE T91 ITE6L9 LT = - 8T0Z YaIeW 1€ 18 se adugjeg
{os7) = - : = (062) = - 2 siesodsia
66'E00°E [} 1 8I'TT SvL Tv'80SZ SB'ILY - - Jead 3yl 1oy uonepaidag
o0z'Lzn's 807 {19 1202 LL8 09'282'y LETO8 = = £T0Z 14dy 10 32 se asuejeg
0T421's 80°Z {19 1202 L8 09487t LE'T0R - LTOZ Y2JeW TE e se asuejeg
(09712 E . {6v'g] ; {TTer) = s|esodsig
BESTLT 080 Yoy ototT I8y SS'S9T°¢ LIETY 9 o Jeak ay oy vopepasdag
IVEER'T 871 £T°Z 5818 96°F PS'0E0'7 0r'8Ls 0L9 = 9102 |udy 10 Je se asuejeg
= = uoneasdap Pajejnwniay
0F'TT6'9E 8L vI'0zZ YZETT S6ETT vS'68T'8T SL79BE'R % 00°0£ 8T0Z Y2Je Tg 1e'se acugjeg
(s9'g) > > % - (sag) - E B s[esodsiq
00°EST'E 0s'y zo'e LE'ST Lr'y9 16'ZEp'E £9°42L - = suonppy
S0'299'€E 87°E ra Lk 81'65 82°59¢L'sz T1'659'L = 000t LT0Z 1DV 10 18 Se asuejeg
S0'299°ce 8TE el LL'16 865 87’59/ ZI'6S9'L 3 0004 LTOZ Y2Ie T€ 18 €2 acuejeg
(6£75£9) - - (ea°ze] = (96°Z¢9) - sjesodsig
SOE8Y'Y BIT 8’5 : STT U190y ety . . SUoIppY
6¢'658'67 607 ¥9'9 LLE6 EE'8S 00LEL"T? D0'SHE'L 96'Zb9 0002 9102 judy 10 3e se asuejeg
unowe SuAued ssoig
sjuawadinby aunyxi4 Asauiyaey puey
|10} pueig Jandwoy 2P0 SaPIYap PUE ainjiuang pue E.\.EL Juippng Pioyasea] |pue En:u..z|m_ signoe

junowe 3ulhuses jo uoneljizuolay

Juawdinba pue uerd ‘Auadosg gy

{pme3s SIMIBYIO ssajun * syyeq HNI -lunowy)

{panunuos) groz yraop Ig o so
SlUawWalels |eldueuly o3 S210N

PajIIT 33eAld salisnpuj 048y ysauyung




-1 SIj0N
= vt 9zl SV PET BI0Z YIIEIN TE 18 5 sduejeg
(£9°€9) (60°60£°7) (8s'9z/) 123k ayy Suunp pasijenden
Zr'st VEETST 0L'EBE sucIppy
= £2°0 (os°£2) LTLe usunsnipy /uonesyissepay
LELET'Z ZE'8Y 66'8YS'T 2070 LT0Z |40y 1D 1€ se aduejeg
LELET'T CEBY b66'8Y5'T 90°0vS LTOT Ye £ je se aduejeqg
(ET'stv'y) = (Tt 190'%) (zT'viv) 1eak ay1 Juunp pasijendes
IV LIEY ZEBY LLZ55°E 6E 91, SuonIppy
BI'S6Z'T - 6EL50'2 6L LE? 9T0Z |udy 10 Je se Sdue|eg
(wunowe SulAiies s5043) 1503

sainyxy juawdinba
12104 |pue aunyuing | pue yueg sFuipjing sieinjjuey|

junowe Juhiies jo uonelpUoIay

ssasdoud ug yiom jeyider ‘g1

(P2183s as1miauio ssajun * syyer vy -unowy)

(panunuos) groz yauow 1€ 1o so

Sjuawalels IBIDUBUIL 0] S310N

Pa3WI 3eALd sauysnpu) 08y ysajung




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
as at 31 March 2018 (continued)

{Amount- INR in Lakhs » unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

17. Non-current Investments
Investment in equity instruments {fully paid up)
Unguoted :
Equity shares at FVTPL {Unguoted)
640 Shares (31 March 2017 - 640 shares) of Rs. 50 each of The Mula Pravara Electric Co-operative 0.32 0.32
Saociety Limited
Total (Equity Instruments) 0,32 0.32
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 0.32 0.32
18. Other non-current financial assets
Securlty deposits 116.99 84.60
Deposits with banks 134,52 116.31
Subsidy income receivable 1,593.39 321.94

1,844.90 522.85

Informiation about the Company ‘s exposure to credit and market risks, and fair value measurement, is included in note 44,

19. Other non-current assets

Capital advances (for capital commitments refer note 38(d)) 153.99 99.18

Prepaid Expenses 15.17 -

VAT receivable 11.06 107.02
180.22 206.20

20. inventories

Raw and packing material (at cost) (Inciuding goods-in-transit of Rs.28.72 lakhs (31 March 2017 932.37 1,067.78

Rs.69.37 lakhs)

Work-in-progress 1,480.78 693.59

Finishes goods *

{Including goods-in-transit of Rs.273.13 lakhs (31 March 2017: R5.319.09 |akhs) 6,110.16 6,953.56
8,523.31 8,714.93

*Valued at the lower of cost or net realisabie value

Hypothecated as charge against borrowings [ refer notes 32 (a]

The write down of inventories to net realisable value as on 31 March 2018 is Rs. 385.41 lakhs (31 March 2017; Rs.164.99 lakhs), The write down
are included in changes in inventories of finished goods and work In Drogress.

21. Trade receivables

fUnsecured)
- Unsecured, Considered good 12,951.29 16,199.90
- Considered doubtful 95.47 64,73
13,046.76 16,264.63
Less: Loss allowance for doubtful debts (95.47) (64.73)
12,951.29 16,199.90

The Company's exposure to credit risk and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 44,




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
as at 31 March 2018 (continued)

(Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
22. Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks :
In current account 3,100.31 3,247.84
In Cash credit account [Refer note32(a) ] 13.56
Cash on hand 5.02 4.71
3,118.89 3,252.55
23. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Balance held as security against borrowing and other commitments 44.30 58.19
{Initial maturity of more than three months and remaining maturity of less than twelve months)
44,30 58.19
24.Current financial assets- Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans to employees 3.62 5.34
3.62 5.34
Information about the Company's exposure to credit and market risks, and fair value measurement, is included in note 44,
25.0ther current financial assets
Subsidy income receivable 1,272.15 1,650.43
Security deposits 2.92 5.88
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 2.86 12,08
Interest accrued an other deposits 10.50 -
1,288.43 1,668.39
Information about the Company's exposure to credit and market risks, and fair value measurement, is Included in note 44.
26. Other current assets
Advance to suppliers
To Related Party:
Prabhat Dairy Limited (Refer note 45) 3,268.69 5,919.58
To other than related parties 3141 2,533.16
Prepaid expenses 67.32 20.63
3,367.42 8,473.37




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
as ot 31 March 2018 {continued)

{Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
27. Share Capital
1) Equity share capital
a) Authorised :
53,446,020 {31 March 2017 56,348,300) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 5,344.60 5,634.83
5,344,560 5,634.83
b) Issued and Subscribed and Paid up:
53,007,184 (31 March 20171 53,007,184) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 5,300.72 5,300.72
5.300.72 5,300.72
¢} Reconciliation of equity shares ding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Particulars as at Asat
31-Mar-2018 31-Mar-2017
No. of shares ]___ Amount No.of shares Amount
At the commencement of the year
Equity shares of Rs, 10 wach 5,30,07,18a 5,300.72 5,19,02,895 5,180.29
Add: Shares issued during the year - - 11,04,289 110.43
At the end of the year
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 5,30,07,184 5,300.72 5,30,07,184 530072

d) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single tlass of equity shares having @ par value of Rs 10 per share Accordingly all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividend and share In the
Company's residual assats. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as dectared from time to time. The voting rights of equity shareholders are in propartion to
thewr share of paid up equity capital of the Company,

) Shares held by hoiding / ultimate holding Company and particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares is set out below:

Name of shareholder ] asat Asat 7
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Ne. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held
Lcheeseland Agro (India) Private Limited, the halding Company 3,74,83,255 o71% 3;74,83,255 70.71%
Prabhat Bairy Limited, the ultimats holding Company 1,55,23,875 29.39% 1,55,23,529 29.39%
Asat A at
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
11} 0.01% Non - ¢ d prefi shares (Refer note 49)
@) Authorised :
11,553,980 (31 March 2017 ¢ 151,700) 0.01% Non - cumulative redesmable preference shares of As. 10 each 1,155.40 15.17
1,155.40 15.17
b) issued and Subscribed and Pald up: (Refer note 49)
11,553,980 {31 March 2017 : nil ) 0.01% Non - cumulative redesmable preference sharas of Re. 10 sach 1,155.40
1,155.40 =

¢} Reconciliation of 0.01% Non - cumulative redeemable preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars Asat Asat
31-Mar-2018 31-Mar-2017
No. of shares A No. of shares | Amount

At the ¢ ement of the year
preference shares shares of Rs. 10 sach - -

Add: Shares Issued during the vear 1,15,53,980 1,155.40
At the end of the year
preference shares shares of As. 10 each 1,15,53,980 | 1,155.40 - [ -

d) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Preference shares

The Company has a single class of praference shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share with ne voting right. Preference Shares shall rank senior to all classes of shares
currently exlsting or established heseafter, with respect ta distribiutions

Each Convertible Praference Shares is entitled to s preferential dividend rate of 0.01% perannum {the *Preferantial Dividend"). The Preferential Dividend is nan cumulative
in nature

From date of issue, these Pref; e shares are r at end of 5th yéar at a price of Rs 137 Per share or at the end of Tth year at a ifice of Rs 155 per share at the
option of investor,

€} Shares held by ultimate holding Campany and particulars of sharehalders holding more than 5% shares is set out below:

Name of shareholder No. of Shares No. of Shares
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
No.of Shares | % held No. of Shares | % held
Prabhat Dairy Limited, the ultimate haolding Company [ 1,15,53,980 ! 100.00% - -




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
os at 31 March 2018 {continued)

{Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
28 Other equity:
Capital reserve 4,189.87 4,189.87
Al the commencement and 2t the end of the year
Securities premium reserve
Opening balance 15,833.43 14,708.02
Add : Additions during the year - 1,136.41
Atthe and of the year 15,834.43 15,834.43
Other Equity
Dpening balance B B
Add : Additions during the year [Net of Deferred tax) 744.75 -
At the end of the year 744,75
Retained earnings
Cpening balance 8,346.53 5,816,58
Net profit far the period 2,503.92 262895
Closing balance 11,350.45 B,446.53
Other items of 0Q1
Opening balance 6.48 [7.32)
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligation 7.25 21.10
Deferred tax on abave 12.51) (7.30)
Closing balance 11.22 6548
32,130.72 2847731

Nature and purpose of other reserves
Securities premium reserve

Securities premium reserve ls used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve |s Utllised in accordance with the provisions of the Art
Remeasurement of defined benefit liobility fasset)

Remeasurement of defined benafir llatility {asset) comprises actuarial g3ins and losses

289, Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit far the year attributable fo equity holders of the Company by the weighted sverage number of equity shares outstanding
during the year

For the year ended For the year ended

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Net profit for the yvear attributable to equity sharehoiders A 2,908.66 2,643.75
Weighted average number of equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each B 5,30,07,184 5,27,14,890

Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share of face value Rs 10 each AfB 5.49 502




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
as at 31 March 2018 (continued)

{Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
30. Non - current borrowings
Secured ( refer details below for assets pledged as security)
Others
From bank (refer note a) 6.75 21.98
Unsecured
11,553,580 (31 March 2017 : Nil) 0.01% Non cumulative Redeemable preference shares (Refer note 10,928.95
49)
10,935.70 2198
Notes:

a) Details of repayment, interest rate and security provided for vehicle loans
The vehicle loans from other banks are secured against such vehicles and carry interest rate ranging from 10.50% to 12.50% p.a. (31 March' 2017

1 10.50% to 12.50% p.a)

The Company's exposure to Interest rate and liquidity risk are disciosed in note 44.

31. Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity-Partly Funded (refer note 43) 21.36 35.29

21.36 35,29

32.Current Borrowings

From banks (refer note ‘a' for details below for assets pledged as security)
Secured (cash credit facility for working capital) 8,000.00 15,190.78

8,000.00 19,190.78

Note:
a) Details of loans from bank repayable on demand:

1. First ranking pari passu charge over the Company's Current assets (present & future) by way of hypothacatian.

2. Second ranking pari passu charge over the Company's Fixed movable assets (present & future) by way of hypothecation,

3. Second ranking pari passu charge by way of registered mortgage on the following lands and all the present & future structures theregn:
) Survey No. 787 adm. 0.21 Hectares owned by the Company.

i) Survey No. 121/6 adm. 0,21 Hectares owned by Mr. Vivek $. Nirmal.

iil} Survey No. 121/7 adm. 0.20 Hectares owned by Mr. Vivek S. Nirmal.

Iv) Survey No. 121/10 adm. 0.56 Hectares owned by Mr, Vivek S. Nirmal,

4) Personal guarantea of Mr. Sarangdhar R. Nirmal and Mr. Vivek S. Nirmal,
The Company's expasure to interest rate and liquidity risk are disclosed in note 44.

33, Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 40) - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,906.98 1,705.78

1,906.98 1,705.78

The Company's exposure to liquidity risk are disclosed In note 44.




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
as at 31 March 2018 (continued)

{Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

34, Other financial liabilities
Current maturities of non current borrowings
Secured
From banks (refer note 30 (a))
Unsecured
From Cheese Land Agro (India) Private Limited (refer note 45 & 48)
Payable for purchase of fixed assets
Security deposits
Employee benefits payable (refer sub-note a)
a} Includes payable to directors Rs. 1.97 lakhs (31 March 2017 : 2.09 lakhs)
The Company's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risk are disclosed in note 44,
35. Other current liabilities
Advances from customers
Statutory dues payables

36. Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity-Partly funded (refer note 43)

37.Current tax liabilities (net)

Current tax liabilities [ net of advance tax]

»

As at As at
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
13.55 14,31
- 11,553.58
490.31 732.88
3.89 3.89
22.97 78.33
530.72 12,383.99
10.94 217.34
522.23 193.07
533.17 410.41
15.93 3.81
15.93 3.81
281.86 936.30
281.86 936.30




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
os at 31 Morch 2018 (continued)

{Amount- INR in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

38. Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for):

As at As at
Contingent llabllities 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
2] Income Tax Matters [refer sub-note (a}]
Financial year 2010-11 9.82 59.82
Financial year 2011-12 8.28 8.28
b} Sales Tax Matters [refer sub-note (al]
Financial year 2010-11 - 12287

Notes:

1} The Company Is contesting the demands related to Income Tax matters and the management believes that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate process.
No tax expense has been accrued in the financial statements for the tax demands raised. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceedings will
not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position and res ults of operations,

¢) On October 09, 2015, a search was conducted by the Income Tax Department pursuant to the provisions of section 132(1) and section 1334 of the income Tax Act,
1961 ("the IT Act") at the offices of the Company at Shrirampur and Pune and also at the offices of the holding company and the residence of Executive Directors
residing at Shrirampur. The Company has not received any demand notice with respect to the search;

Consequent to the survey carried out by the Income Tax department under section 133A of the IT Act on the Company, the Income Tax department has reéquisitionad
books of accounts and other documents undar section 132A of the IT Act. Accordingly, the Company had submitted the coples of the documents required by the tax
authority.

During the previous year, the Company had decided to file an application with the Hon'ble Income Tax Settiement Commission (ITSC) with respect to the expected
litigations which may arise pursuant to the survey carried out by the Income Tax authorities for AY 2010-11 to AY 2016-17, As on 31 March 2018, the Company Is in
pracess of filing the said application with (Tsc,

Based on best estimate, management has carried an evaluation of possible tax obligation that may arise out of the said litigation, As per the management evaluation,
the Company will have to pay additional tax amaounting to Rs. 60 lakhs lincluding interest thereon), reversed excess MAT cradit entitlement of Rs. 347,15 lakhs for
assessment years 2010-11 to 2016-17 and provide for additional defarred tax liability charge due to write off of certain fixed assets in tax block for which depreciation
claim would not be allowed by the tax authorities amounting to Rs. 258.97 lakhs. Accardingly, total provision was mage pursuant to above matter amounting to RAs.
B66.12 lakhs in the previous year,

The Company believes that they will not have any additional tax liability or penaity (if any| ather than already accounted into books of accounts based on management
best estimate.

Since the ultimate outcome of the assessment proceeding of a settiement application cannot presently be determined, no additional provision for tax including
penalty, if any, as a resuit of such autcome, is made in the current financial statements.

As at As at
d) Commitments 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Estimated amount of contracts Femaining to be executed on capital account and not 1,325.12 575.20
provided for (net of advances)
Other commitments (refer sub-note a) 2.24 2.36
1,327.36 577.56
Notes:

8] The Company has taken land on lease from Directors and refatives of directors for a period ranging from 15 years to 29 years starting from December, 2006, In
terms of the said lease agreement, the Company is required to pay an annual rent of Rs. 12,862 p.a, However, the Company has received a lstter of waiver from them
indicating that the total rent payable since inception of the lease till March 2018 has been waived and that the Company is not required to pay any lease rent for the
above referred period,




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
s at 31 March 2018 (continued)

{Amount- INR in Lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

39. Operating leases

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for office space. Lease arrangements provide for cancellation by either party and also contain a clause for
renewal of the lease agreement and there are no non-cancellable arrangements, Total lease rental expenses for operating leases recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss is Rs. 188.52 lakhs {2017 : Rs. 50.69 Lakhs)

40. Compliance with Micro, Small and Medium E Prises Develog Act, 2006

Based on the Information available with the Company, there are no outstanding dues and payments made to any supplier of goods and services beyond the specified
period under Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 [MSMED Act], There is no interest payable or paid to any suppliers under the said Act.

For the year ended  For the year ended
41. Payment to auditors * 31-Mar-18

31-Mar-17
Statutory audit fees 5.00 9.20
Out of pocket expenses reimbursed 0.69 0.41
5.69 9,61

* Current year figures are excluding Goods and Service tax (GST ) whereas Previous year ended figures are including service tax .

Includes fee Rs.Nil (31 March 2017: Rs. 9.20 lakhs) and out of pocket expenses of Rs. Nil (31 March 2017: Rs. 0.41 lakhs} including service tax, paid to a firm other than
MSKA & Associates,

42, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per provisions of section 135 of C panies Act 2013, the Company was required to spend Rs. 72.18 lakhs {31 March 2017 : Rs. 45.12 lakhs) being 2% of average
net profits made during the three Immediately preceding financial vears, In pursuance of its Corporate Social Respansibility Policy on the activities specified in
Schedule Vil of the Act. The Company has spent Rs, 88.48 lakhs (31 March 2017 : Rs, 51.98 lakhs] towards Corporate Social Responsibility activities.

The breakup of expenditure incurred on CSR activities during the vear (April 2017 - March 2018):

Particulars of CSR activity Amount paid |Amount yetto be |Total Amount
paid

(i} Construction / acquisition of any asset
{ii) On purpose other than (i} aboue

88.48 . 8.48
Majoriy towards for Livelihood enhancement and rural development), | i

1/




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
os at 31 March 2018 (continued)

(Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless oth erwise stated)

43. Liabilities relating to employee benefits
The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans,

(1) Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, In respect of qualifying employees towards Provident Fund, which is a
defined contributions plans. The Company has no obligation other than to make specified contributions. The contribution are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss as they accrue. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund is Rs. 27.58 lakhs (31 March 2017: Rs. 26.92 lakhs). The
contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the scheme,

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan:
Actuarial gains and losses in respect of defined benefit plans are recognised In Other Comprehensive Income. The Defined Benefit Plan comprise of Gratuity. Gratuity
Is & benefit to an employee based an 15 days last drawn salary for each completed year of service.
As at As at
31-Mar-18 3i-Mar-17

Defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 58.65 35.10
Defined benefit Plan Assets as at the end of the vear 21.36 -
Liability for Gratuity Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet as at the end of the year 37.29 39,10
Non-current 21,36 35.29
Current 15.93 3.81
A. Reconci of the net defined benefit llabilities

I. Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at beginning of the vear 39.10 44.42
Current service cost 10.58 12.23
Past Service cost 14,51 <
Interest cost 2.84 355
Benefits paid {1.35) -
Actuarial (gains) / losses recognised in other comprehensive income

- experience adjustment (7.03) {21.10)

58.65 39.10

II. Recondiliation of present value of defined benefit Plan

Fair value of plan assets as at beginning of the year

Contribution made during the year 20.62 -
Maortality charges (0.28) -
Return on pian assets 0.80
Actuarial (gains) / losses recognised in other comprehensive iIncome .

- experience adjustment 0.22 -
Fair value of plan Assets 21.36 -
i, A to be recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation 58.65 39.10
Defined benefit Plan Assets 21.36 -
Net liability recognized in Balance Sheet 37.29 39.10
Iv. Exg recognised in the Stat of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 10.58 12.23
Past Service cost 14,51 -
Interest cost 2.84 3.55
Return on plan assets {0.80) -

27.13 15,78

(7



Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
as ot 31 March 2018 (continued)

(Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)

43. Liabilities relating to employee benefits (continued)

Fortheyear  Forthe year

ended ended

V. Remeasurement reconised in other comprehensive income 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Actuarial (gain)/ losses on defined benefit obligation (7.03) {21.10)
Actuarial (gain)/ losses on defined benefit Plan assets (0.22) -
Net Actuarial {gain)/ losses (7.25) (21.10)
vii Expected contribution to the fund in the next year 37.00

B. Defined benefit obligations
I. Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages),
Fortheyear  Forthe year

ended ended

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Discount rate 1.7% 7.4%
Salary escalation rate 8.0% 8.0%
Attrition rate 5.0% 5.0%
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (in years) 14.13 14.14

Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on published standard table in accordance with Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) ultimate.

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield of Indian government securitias as at Balance sheet date for the estimated terms of obligation.
Salary Escalation Rate : The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors
il. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

For the year ended Far the year ended
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (5.03) 5.91 (3.68) 4.38
Future salary growth (1% movement) 3.45 (2.96) 2,591 (2.45)
Attrition rate (1% mavement) 1.07 (1.18) 0.57 {0.61)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown.

s
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Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
as at 31 March 2018 (continued)

{Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)
44. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

i. Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management
framework. The board of directors has established a Risk Management Framework which Is reviewed and manitored by the Risk
Management Committee. The Committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, The Company, through its training and established procedures,
aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company’s activities expase it to markat risk, lquidity risk and credit risk,
This note explains the sources of risk to which the Company Is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk,
ii. Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting In a financial loss, The maximum exposure to
the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to Rs. 12,951.29 lakhs and Rs. 16,199.90 lakhs as
of 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, respectively. Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenus earned
from customers located in India. Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing
credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the
normal course of business.

On account of adoption of ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The
Company computes the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on available external and internal credit risk
factors such as the ageing of its dues, market information about the customer, industry information and the Company's historical
experience for customers.

The following table gives detalls in respect of percentage of revenues generated from top ten customers :

For the vear ended For the vear ended
Particulars 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Rewvenue from top ten customer 81,753 74,473

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade
receivables,

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivabies during the year was as follows:

Amount in INR for the year ended

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Balance at the beginning 64.73 64.73
Impairment loss recognised 30.74 -
Balance at the eng 95.47 64.73

The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 180 days are still collectible in full, based on
historical payment behaviour.

Cash and cash equivaients

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks and finandial institutions with high
credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include certificates of deposit which are funds
deposited at a bank for a specified time period.

&/




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
as at 31 March 2018 {continued)

(Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)
44. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management {continued)

Hil. Liquidity risk

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, working capital facility with banks and the cash flows that are generated from
operations. The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is percelved,

As of 31 March 2018, the Company had a working capital of Rs. 18,028.60 lakhs (31 March 2017 : Rs, 3,741.60 lakhs). The working capital of the Company for this
purpose has been derived as follows:

As at As at
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Total current asset (&) 29,297.26 38,372.67
Total current liabilities (B) 11,268.66 34,631.07
Waorking capial (A-8) 18,028.60 3,741.60

The working capital as at 31 March 2018 calculated above includes cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 3,118.89 lakhs and deposits with banks of Rs. 44.30 lakhs. Also,
the working capital as at 31 March 2017 calculated above includes cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 3,252.55 lakhs and deposits with banks of Rs, 58.19 lakhs.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date, The amounts are gross and undiscounted.

As at 31-03-2018
Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total & months or less 6 - 12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years ool

amount years
Secured loans from banks 20.30 |20.30) (6.60) {6.95) |6.75) - -
Preference share Capital 10,928.95 (15,828.92) . . - (15,828.92) .
Working capital loans from banks 8,000.00 (8,000.00) {8,000.00) - - - -
Trade payables 1,906.98 (1,906.98) {1,906.98) - - - -
Payable for purchase of fixed assets 490,31 (490.31) (490.31) - - - -
Security deposits 3.89 (3.89) (3.89) - - - -
Employee benefits payable 22.97 (22.97) (22.97) - - - -

21,373.40 (26,273.37) (10,430.75) (5.95) (6.75) (15,828.92) 5
As at 31-03-2017
Contractual cash flows

Carrying Tatal 6 months or less 6 - 12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years Mgrethans

amount years
Secured loans from banks 36.89 (36,89) (7.25) {7.66) (21.98) - -
Loans from related parties 11,553.98 (11,553.58) {11,553.98) - - & -
Working capital foans from banks 19,190.78 (19,190.78) (19,190.78) - - * <
Trade payables 1,705.78 (1,705.78) (1,705.78) - -
Payable for purchase of fixed assets 732,88 (732.88) {732.88) - - < .
Security deposits 3.89 {3.89) (3.89) - . - -
Employee benefits payabie 7833 [78.33) (78.33) - - -

33,302.53 (33,302.53) (33,272.89) (7.66) {21.98) -




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
as at 31 March 2018 (continued)

{Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)
44. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

iv. Exposure to currency risk

The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk Is as follows:

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

INR Foreign currency INR Foreign currency
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
uso 403.61 6.21 349.35 5.39
Net exposure on respect of recognised liabilities 403.61 6,21 348.35 539
Other current financial liabilities
EURO 7.11 0.09 225.70 3.26
Net exposure on respect of recognised liabilities 7.11 0.09 225.70 3.26

The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the year.
Average rate

Year-end spot rate

INR 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
usp 64.94 67.45 65.04 64.84
EURO 74.94 74.45 80.62 69.25

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against US dollars/Euro at March 31 would have affected the
measurement of financial instruments denominated in US dollars/Euro and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast

purchases.

Profit or loss

Equity, net of tax

Effect in INR Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

Year ended March 31, 2018

10% movement - Profit / (loss)

usb 40.36 (40.36) 35.78 (35.78)

EURD 0.71 (0.71) 0.63 {0.63)
41.07 (41.07) 36.41 (36.41)

Profit or loss

Equity, net of tax

Effect in INR Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

Year ended March 31, 2017

10% movement - Profit / (loss)

usp 3493 (34.93) 19.98 (19.98)

EURD 22.57 (22.56) 12.91 (12.91)
57.50 {57.49) 32.89 (32.89)

W




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
as at 31 March 2018 (continued)

(Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)
44, Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

v. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of
changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing financial instruments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow
interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing financial instruments will fluctuate because of
fluctuations in the interest rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk

Company's interest rate risk arises from borrowings. The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial
instruments is as follows:

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Fixed-rate instruments
Financial assets 178.83 174.50
Financial liabilities 10,949.25 11,590.87
Variable-rate instruments
Financial liabilities 8,000.00 19,190.78

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rate would have increased or decreased profit or loss by Rs, 107.70 lakhs (31 March
2017: Rs. 114.16 lakhs). This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased)
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
100 bp 100 bp 100 bp increase 100 bp
increase (loss) decrease (profit) (loss) decrease (profit)

Year ended March 31, 2018

Variable-rate instruments 80.00 (80.00) 70.91 (70.91)
Cash flow sensitivity 80.00 (80.00) 70.91 {70.91)
Year ended March 31, 2017

Variable-rate instruments 191.91 (191.91) 109.79 (109.79)
Cash flow sensitivity 191.91 (191.91) 109.79 (109.79)

@/-




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
as at 31 March 2018 (continued)

(Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)
44. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to

ordinary shareholders.

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity

reserves attributable to equity holders.

The Company monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity.

As at As at

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17

Total debts 18,949.25 30,781.65
Less : Cash and cash equivalent and bank balances 3,163.19 3,310.74
Adjusted net debt 15,786.06 27,470.91
Total equity 37,431.44 33,778.03
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 0.42 0.81




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
as ot 31 March 2018 {continued)

[Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stated)
45, Related party disclosure

{a} Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Sarangdhar B Nirmal, Director

Mr. Vivek 5. Nirmal, Managing Director

Mr, Kishar Nirmal

Mr. Ravira| vadhane, Chief Financlal Officer [from 27 April 2016}

Mr. Amit Gaia, Chief Financlal Officer [from 12 December 2015 upto 26 April 2016)

Me. Anll Goel (upte 15 March 2017)

Mz, Anurag Pandya, Company Seceetary

Miss. Tasneem Husseni Bhanpurawala, Company secretary (w.e.f. November 15, 2017}

(b} Names of th

Ultimate Halding Company and significant shareholder
Prabhat Dairy Umited

Holding Company
Cheese Land Agro (India} Private Limited

Trust which directly controls reporting Company and in which KMPs are interested.
MNirmal Family Trust | Refer note a)

Enterprises / proprietary In which KMPs or thelr relatives exercise significant Influsnce ©
Prabhat Agro. Multi State Co-Opsrative Soclety Limited

Relatives of KMPs :

Mrs. Vijaya 5 Nirmal

M. Arvind 1. Nirmal

Mrs. Nisha & Nirmal

Mrs: Nidhi V. Nirmal

Mrs. Mamta A, Goel

Mrs. Sneha Niemal Astunkar

) Disclosure of related party transactions:

ated parties with whom transactions were carried out during the period and description of relationship :

Enterprises [ propristary
concerns in which key
Me
Particulars u"":::;::m"' Holding Compary | © ":’::'i"“ M| iiarinpdminne phrssnnal 6 Total
their relatives exerclse
significant influence
Purchase of good
70,520,844 % : 70,520.44
Prabhat Dairy Limited * i
i [53,857.24) . [53,867.24)
Prabhat Agro Multl State Ca-Operative Sooety Limited N 365,92 36592
(418,30] (418:30)
sale of good .
Prabhat Cairy Limitee 12,359.23 12,359.23 |
{7.605.86) (7.605.86)|
Cheese Land Agro (India) Private Limited 2 444.33 444,93
Finance Cost I
Cheese Land Agro (indiaj Private Limited i93.51 15951
(1,450.47) 13.451.47)
Ma rinl ry T
Vivek § Nirmal 36,00 . 3800
1 (36.00) {36.00)
Salary
Raviraj Vahadane . - 2717 a 2747
16.04) (6.04)
Kisher B, Nirmal 55.00 » 55.00
- (55.00) {55.00)
Anil - -
e (42.96) - {42.98)
Tasneem Hussen| Bhanpurawala - Ln & 121
544 5.4a
Mr. Anurag Pandya (7951 e
20,54 20,54
Helatives of KMP
e [14.25) E (1425)
lssue of Egylty Shares
Prabhat Dairy Limited . B
(110,43} (110.43)
Security Premium
Prabhat Dairy Limited S e
lasue 010,01 % non ‘ i share {including
Premium) **
Prabhat Dairy Limited i - - 11,553.98




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
a5 at 31 March 2018 [continued)

{Amaunt- INR in Lakhs , unfess otherwise stated)
45. Reluted party disclosure (continued)

Enterprises /[ proprietary
concerns in which key
Particulars Ultlf:::;.l:dlnu Haolding Company wa::;?" = management personnel or Total
their relatives exercise
significant influence
Lease Rent payment
Kishor Ramchandra Nirmal - - 25.83 25.83
Borrowings Bepald
Cheese Land {India) Private Limited = 11,553.98 11,553.98
Balunces outstanding at the end of the year -
Trade Receivable -
Cheese Land {India} Private Limited N o i " i
Advances to sunpliers
Prabhat Dairy Limited 268 0 = 5 N e
{5,919 58) - (5,919.58}
Prabhat Agro Multi State Co-Operative § Lmited § 2
ral ErO | perative Society (112.85) {11265}
ee benefits ble
197 1387
al
Wivek 5 Nirm. {3.00} = {3.00)
Kishor . Nirmat 3.33 133
(4.58) [a:58)
Mr. Raviraj Vahad > ;
r Raviraj Vahadans s (3.02) - [3.02)
Mr. anil Goel : = :
; [237) - (237}
Mr, Anurag Pand: . E -
I, Anurag Pandye 10.65) E [0.65)
Felativas of KMP = a
i (0.79) {0.79)
Post employment defined benefit
Vivel S Nirmal 1.35 7.35
(4.35] (4.35)
Kisnor B Nirmal 1388 13.68
{6:62) 7
. | -
Mr. Ravira Vahadane (50} {050)
Mr. Anurag Pandys . * -
F {0.15) * 10.15)
Tasneam Hussenl Bhanpurawala e S 0.01 ool
Borrowings
Cheese Land (india) Private Limited : ) =
A i) Peivusy: oo {11,553,94) . 141,553.98)

Notes:

a] Trust und enterprise which directly controls reporting Company and in which KMPs are interested.

b} Fygures in bracket refate to the previous year.

* The Company has taken Land on lease from Directors and reiatives of directars for a period ranging from 15 vears to 29 years starting from December, 2006 i terms
of the said iease agreement, the Company is required to pay an annual rent of Rs. 11,862/ pa. However the Company has received a latter af waiver from them
indicating that the total rent payable since |nception of the lease till 31 March 2018 has buen waived and that the Company is not required to pay any lease rent for the
above referred period. Accardingly the said transaction has not been disclosed sbove.

** Carrying value of Preference shares a5 on 31 march 2018 are at amortised cost

‘With respect to Lransactions with related parties, the Company is of view that such transactions have been carried out at arms length and conditions; provisions as laid
down in section 188 of the Companies Act. 2013 have been complied with




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
as at 31 Morch 2018 {continued)

{Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stoted)

46. Subsidy Income under Packaged Scheme of Incentive (PSI) 2007

The Company has received an Eligibility Certificate from the Department of Industries, Government of Maharashtra under the Package Scheme of Incentives, 2007
('Scheme'} pursuant to which the Campany Is sligible to receive benefits in the form of Electricity Duty exemption, Stamp Duty exemption and Industrial Promation
Subsidy (in form of refund of Value Added Tax and Central Sales Tax / Goods & Service Tax), subject to fulfilment of certain conditions under the scheme. These benefits

are in the nature of Government Grants in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 20 - Accounting for Gavernment Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance.

As per Ind AS 20, Government grants shall not be recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the entity will comply with the conditians attached to them:; and the
grants will be received.

Until the year ended 31 March 2016, there was uncertainty of the timings of the actual receipt of the admitted claim from the Government, which was subject to number
of factors beyond the control of the Company. Manag 1t believed that reasonable assurance of receipt of grant will be established when sanction for the first

disbursement of the claim s received by the Company. Therefore, Company did not recognize income resulting from government grant on accrual basis till the year
ended 31 March 2016.

During the previous year ended 31 March 2017, the Company had received first disbursement sanction |ettar. Since, the Company had received first disbursement
sanction letter, the management believed that there was a reasonable assurance of receipt of grants accrued to the Company company.

Accordingly, the Company has recognized income on accrual basis under the Scheme amounting to Rs. 1115.50 lakhs [(31 March 2017 : 3,341.73 lakhs (Rs. 1,450.26 lakhs
for the year ended 31 March 2017 2nd Rs. 1,891.47 lakhs for periods prief to 31 March 2016 which was disclosed s an exceptional item})].

Further, the Company has obtained an extarnal tax expert opinion for treatment of the aforesaid incame under the provisions of Incorme tax Act, 1961. Based on the said
opinion the Company has reduced the above income from the tax block of fixed assets

47.Import duty on advance licences

The company had imported raw-material under agvance licences in the previous and current years, During the current year, the management ascertained that it would
not be able to utilise the imparted raw materials for export sales and accordingly it suo-moto paid the impart duty liability (including Interest and penalty) of Rs. 462.61
lakhs (31 March 2017 : Nil). Consequently, the Cost of material consumed Includes Rs 359.70 lakhs (31 March 2017 : Nil) on-account of impart duty , Finance cost includes
Rs 48.94 lakhs {31 March 2017 : Nil) on account of interest and rates and taxes includes Rs 53.96 lakhs on aceount of penalty thereof.

48. Loan from holding company

In the earlier years, the Company had abtained interest free loans from Cheese Land Agro (India) Private Limited (CAIPL) {Holding company). The balance outstanding as
@t 31 March 2017 was Rs, 11,553.98 |akhs.

As per the revised terms, interest was chargeable @ 7.5% p.a. such borrowings.

During the current year, the Company has repaid the entire loan amount outstanding of Rs. 11,553,98 lakhs along with interast accrued thereon by 12 July 2017, It has
nald interest @ 7.5% for the period from 1 April 2017 to 30 June 2017. However, o requesting, Cheese Land Agro (India} Private Limited (CAIPL) (Holding company) has
waived off interest for the period from 1 July 2017 till 12 July 2017

The Company has accounted |nterest cost amounting to Rs. 139.51 (31 March 2017 : Rs. 1,451.47 lakhs being notional interest on interest free loans as per Ind AS 109).

49.Redeemable Preference shares
During the year, the Company has issued 11,553,980 (31 March 2017 : Nil) 0.01% Noh - Cumulative Radearmable Preference shares of face value Rs 10 each at price of Rs,

100 each (premium Rs 80 each) to its ultimate holding company, From date of issue, these Praference shares are redeermnable at end of Sth year at 3 price of Rs 137 per
thare or at the and of 7th year at a price of Rs 155 per share at the aption of investor,

As per the provisions of Ind A5 109 — “Financial Instruments”, being mandaterily redeemable, Prefarence shares are classified as liabllity. Preference shares are initially
recognised at fair value. Fair value of the lability portion is determined using market interest rate of equivalent term borrowirgs . The remainder of the proceeds (s
attributable to equity which is recognised and included in shareholders equity , net of Income tax affects ,

Conseguently to initial recognition at Fair value, the proceeds from issue of preference share of Rs 11,553.98 lakhs (31 March 2017 | Nil) is hifurcated into 'Prefersnce
share liability’ partion of Rs 10415.08 lakhs (31 March 2017 : Nil) and equity component of Rs 1138.90 lakhs (31 March 2017 : Nil) (net of deferred tax Rs. 744.75 lakhs {31
March 2017 : Nil)}

The liability component of Preference share being classfied at amortised cost is subsequently measured using the effective interest methad at Rs, 513,88 fakhs for the
year ended 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017 : Nil} and accordingly Interast expense is of Rs. 513.88 lakhs is charged to in profit or loss.




Sunfresh Agro Industries Private Limited

Notes to financial statements
as at 31 Morch 2018 (continued)

[Amount- INR in Lakhs , unless otherwise stoted)

50. Details of specified Bank Notes held (SBN) and transacted during the period 08 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 :

7 Other
Particulars ppcihed Badk denomination Total
Notes
notes
Closing cash in hand as on 08 November 2016 0.15 3.84 3.99
Add : Permitted receipts - 28.79 28,79
Less : Permitted payments - 37.66 37.66
Less : Amount deposited in Banks 0.15 0.01 0.16
Add : Withdrawal from Banks 5.23 523
Closing cash In hand as on 30 December 2016 - 0.19 018

51. The previous year's financial statements were audited by 2 firm other than MSKA & Associates.

52, Prior year comparatives

Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever nece ary to correspond with the current vear classification/ disclosure.
For MSKA & Associates [Formerly known as M25K & Associates) For and on behalf of Board of directors of
Chartered Accountants
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